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CHATIRITAL: The order applies to this witness.

Mit HLUIGWALT: You are a teacher 2t Moroka liigh School,
Thaba Nchu? —= That is right.

What is the enrolment z{ your school? —- Plus-minus &70.

The school is divided into two sections. The acadenic
section. —=- That is right.

That is the high school from Form £ to Form 5 ané the
other division is technical, —— That is right.

An industrial school. Could you sketch to the (10}
Commission what the attitude of the students was Jjust after
the Soweto riots of the 16th June? -- Liter the riots oi the
16th June in Soweto the news of the incidents on the hHeefl were
received by our students with mixed feelings.

Now this news, where &did they get this news? —-- HMany of
them have got radios and of cecurse they also buy newspapers,

Is it now the students - is it what the students arc used
now to buying newspapers? —- It is a normel thing to buy
newspapers and to listen to the radio.

You could call it a fashion, -- It is something (20)
fasionable with them, that is right.

And when you say they have received the news with mixed
feelings, what do you mean by that? -- On the one hand there
was a group of students that sort of revealed that the news
of what had taken place in Soweto was something they had
expected, They were filled with excitement ané on the other
hand there were students who were a bit worried, especilally
those who come from the Reef, Apparently worried because
they were worried about the uncertainty of next of kin,

They were worried about the salety of the next of (30
kin and the fricnds as 2 result of what was then happening., —-

rhﬂtf---
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That is right.

Now, there was a stagce where you had gone to Pretoria for
a course and when you went to rretoria for the course, what was
the attitude then of the students? —-- That was from the 2nd
to the 6th fiugust when I was attending a course in Pretoria.
In the meantime these riots were ervpting in different places
and as the eruptions went on, the tension amongst our studenis
was sort of building up.

And then it found expression on the 6th fugust. -- That
is right. (10)

When they burnt down a classroom and some of the things
at school. -- That is right.

How I would like Fou to describe what actually happened
then with regard to placards which would actually indicate to
vou Wwhat the grievances of the students were. —--— The tenzion
which had been building up sort of broke out on the &th
August and that was the day I was entraining in Pretoria and
when I arrived in Thaba Lichu people there told me what had
taken place the previous day. I arrived on the Saturday. But
anyway, there were still some things which I saw which {(20)
were sort of, shall I say, sort of evidence of what had Uaken
place. For example in our hall, that is our school hall, all
over the - there are blackboards on the walls of our school
hall and 211 over the blackboards there were wrilten slogans
and many of these came from the Iorm 4 history book.

You are a teacher of history in that school? -- Yes, I
am a teacher, I teach Torm 4 history.

Now these slogans, can you renenmber some of them? -- Yes,

of course I have an idea,., TFor example, thgre was one some-

thing like: 'Scattered Slavs let us be one united (3C)
whole and not mere [fragments'. Iow that is a quotation. It

deals/..,
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deals with the Slavs, you know, in the Zelkan States when
the Russions were practising what they use? to ecall pan-
Slavism and you know, they were sort of making the people to
have, shall I say, 2 national conscience.

So now did they think that was being applied to all of
them? -- Apparently they were now conmparing what they had
read and studied in their history lesson with what was
happening in South Africa at the time and the only interpreta-
tion I could give to the slogans as written on the bozrd was
that, well, the people of Soweto, let us be united and (10)
be one whole and not mere fragments.

How, at a certain stage you were called to your headeffics
at Mafeking and the headoffice wanted to know what the trouble
was and what caused the unrest in vyour school. You vere one
of the people who actually tried to give some of the reasons
there. So could you just name those reasons to the Commission?
— Some of the things I mentioned were the questicn of
separate amenities at our school. There was the question of
extra-nural activities. Some of the teachers not taking a very
active part in the school extira-mural activities. (20)

ow your staff is composed of 3lack and White. -- That
is right.

What is the effect of separate oamenities as you put it
there to your government? —-- I would like to make an illustra-
tion. You find that in the senior classes there arc special
classrooms say, a special geography class, a special mathema-
tics class, a special biology class. INow it has come to the
notice of the students that every time the class is given by
a Black staff member then he is not pgiven the ch ance to have
a special classroom, he has to move from one classroon (20)

to another and of course they have confronted us as teachers,
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as Black teachers at the school with the question: but why is
it that when there is a special ¢lassroonm, the minute you
have the class taken by a Elack tezcher then you find that
you have got to move from one classroom to another instead of
using the special classroon.

In short, a White teacher is to stay in onc clascsroom
and the pupils come to him and he Las apparatus and things at
hand and then a Black man has go to from class 1o class? --
That is the position, especially in the senior classes with
specific subjects. (10)

knd you mentioned something about the solving of the
problems of the school ad a staff, +“hat does separate
amenities .... == One of the things I could méntion is that
our staff is composed of both Europeans and Blacks and we
have separate staffrooms. There is a stafllroom for the Black
teachers and there is a staflfroom for the Zuropean teachers
and I think one of the problems is that as teachers we
experience difficulties in the classroom situation and then
as colleagues we can always thresh out the preblem in our
staffroom but now in a cace where you have separate (207
staffrooms, you will find that it is sometimes not possible
for the teachers from the two groups to diccuss common
problems concerning the school.

You think if you had one staffroom you will be able to
discuss these problems so that you would have a common ground
or common way of tackling them? -- lefinitely. OSince we Blacks
definitely have got a better understanding of the students,
the Black students of the school, we know the customs ol the
people, we know the traditions of the people, we know the
language the people speak and we think we could be of (Z%0)
great help to our European staff members,

You/...
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You would like also to speak about what the effect of

L]

the dedication to duty amonpist some of the siafll, what e¢ffect

it has. —= I would like to mention that amdngst the Eurcpeans

L"I.

L

I must say you will find dedicated men and women wno are there
to help us, but in & case of 2 European teacher who focs
astray here or there, our Black students have got such a keen
eye to see even the smallest mistale committed by these people
and that sort of now creates some type ol anti-White feeling
amongst the students,

I am sure you have summarised rezlly all the things (10)
that you wanted to tell the Commission. —- I think something
on the question of extra-mural activities. &As 1 have already
stated that we have Black staff members and Zuro
menbers. J1ouw find that quite & good number of the Zuropeans
do not realise the importance of going out into the playgrounds
with the children where one lecarns - gets an opportuniiy of
knowing the student intimately, you know, in an inflormzl
situation outside the tense classroon situation and because now
on the one hand you [ind ithe Black teachers play a very actiive
role in this part, you will finé that their relationship (20)
with the students is wvery, very close while their celleagues

on the other hand are sort of left out in the celd.

!.-l'l

Do you still have something to add? —= I think that is
all I have to say.
I have no further questions, Ii'lord,

CHAIRMAI: Thank you very much for coming to give evidence and

giving your views.

HO FURVLEER GUSSTIONS.

THE COMMISSION ADJOURNS FOR1UNCH.

L

e i e e (=0



E T I Fr e & m s e
— " r — Edada .57 4 sden g b S @

THE COMIISSICN RESUMES AT & LI, Ol THE 11th IIOVEMBER, 1976.

DR YUTAR: The next witness is HMr l.L. Scitlalenton.

EOWARD 1EIGHTON SETLALENTOL.L: sworn state

L

DR YUTAR: You have been 35 years in the service of the

Education Department. -- Quite correct,

You started off in the early 1970's as a teacher 21 one
of the Bantu schools. —- That is right.

ind over the years you have worked yourselfl up stately
and gradually in every capacity: principal of various schools,
inspector and now you are the circuli inspector of (10)
the Bantu schools. == In Thaba lichu, quite correct.

You are stationed at Thaba Ilchu. —-—- I am stationed at
Thaba lichu.

ind you have therefore a varied and long experience in
the field of Bantu education., =- Luite correct.

Now, in our consultation I asked you whether what your
views were about the Bantu education, whelther it is in any
way inferior to genersl education., Can you tell liis Lordship
your views? —- Well, I would not say Eantu education is
inferior to Luropean education for instance, because I (20)
do not know the syllabus of European educntion, but what I can
say is Bantu education is better than the Provincial education.

In other words, ever since ,. -- The inception of Bantu
education.

+

Bantu education was taken out of provincial authorities
.+ == That is right.

find you feel it is better. —- I feel it is better,

And if I understand you correctly, you feel that there is
a gradual improvenment in the education. -- Luite correct.

ow, we have heard evidence that some pcople object (30)

o do not feel happy aboutl the term Dantu cducation. IHow do

TOU o e
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you feel about it? With Jyour experience, -- %Well, there are
quite a number of people who do not want the word 'Eantu',
they would rather prefer if you Jjust say 'education'

-

CHAIIIL.I: Would they prefer it to be ecalled 'llatlional

education' or what is the word they want? -- Just education,
national education possibly.

DR YUTAR: ‘Without any diffcrentiation. —- Without any

differentiatvion.

You personally, I understand, have no objection to it., --
That is correct. (10)

Ls long as the education is good. —— Good,

How, in all your experience have you received from the
students complaints about the standard of education or the
education in general? —-- llo, I have not received any complaintis
from the students,

ind you have personally taught and jyou are supervising
the teaching of all the subjects in your own home language,
English and ffrikeans. -- That is correcvy.

Would it be correct to suggest that in Thaba Ichu parti-

cularly, the children there speak Afrikaans more freely  (20)

than they do English? -- Well, yes, tThey speak flfrikaans
freely.
FMuently. —— Fluently.

Now, we do know that there arc objections and complaints
in schools and particularly the boarding-houses. We have then
in the European schools and boarding-houses as well. Now the

complaints that you have received from time to time are they of

a local nature or of a national nature? —- Just a local
nature.
Local: nature. == Yes. (30}
For example? —- For ecxample they anre comnleoining about

the/. ..
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the meals and so on,
About the meals and all that, So one can say thoso

complaints are of most studenis, irrespective ol race, colour

£y

or creed, Iliow, you personally were not present at any of the

schools in Thaba Iichu when certain incidents took place,

at the Strydom Training College, Moroka School and other

schools., —— Ilo, I was nobt present unfortunsvely. In July when

the schools closed, I was not present, I was in FPielersburg

and also on the &th August unfortunately I was not present in

the circuit, I was in FPietersburg. (10)
But you made it your business as a circuit inspector

to endeavour to ascertain the causes of these riotous incidents.

—— That I did,

Will you bte so kind as to tell His Lordship in jyour own
words what your own views are as to the possible causes of
these riots? =- Well, in Thaba Iichu, we have boarding-schools
and then we get children from all over the couniry and then
the cause of this unrest in Thaba Ilchu I think is the
influence from the Heefl, from Soweto in particular.

The influence from the Reef an® Soweto in particular.(20)
—~= That is right. For instance on the lst INovembter when the
students were supposed to write their examination early in
the morning, pamphlets were Aistributed at lMoroka in the campus
and I have a copy here, "Soweto Students Representative
Council. Students please don't jecopardise your lives by
writing examination. Fresently we are around.”

That pamphlet, where did you find this? -- 1 was given
this by the principal of the school. It was thrown in the
school campus. Wwhoever did it we do not know up to now.

M'Lord, I hand this in as an ecxhibit, it will be (%0)

EXHIRIT 178, ITow who do you think -~ this was = you lound

~/ene
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That is correct.

And what is the relationshin between the principals of
the schools, the teachers on the one hand ahd on the other hand
Black students? —-= No, neo, I think it is quite healthy.

fnd is there communication? -- There is.

ind the relationship between the principals of the schools,
inspectors like yourself on the one hand, and the parents on
the other hand? -- Very healthy.

How, we are pleased to note that in the Free State there
has been a minimum amount of rioting and damage. What (10)
would you pubt that down to? —-- Well, because in the Free Stste
it is only in the homeland like Thaba lichu for instance and
Witsieshoek where we have boarding facilities. Ilow generally
in the Free State the local children who attend school, they
do not have influence from the Heefl,

They give no trouble. —- Ilo trouble., It is only here

and there, you know,

So who gives the trouble then? —- Pardon?
Who causes the trouble and who gives the trouble? —- VWell,
it is from Soweto. They say they sympathise with the (20)

Soweto students.

Have you a large percentage of foreign students in Thaba
Nchu? By foreign I mean from this country but from the Reef
and Pretoria. —— There are quite a number. I think the
principals can give the exact fipures.

Yes, we got the figures before this, asbout 70 to 75k.

Have you ever attempted to speak to these sludents from Soweto?
—- No, I have not talked to the students from Soweto. I have
just talked to the students as all students.

hs a whole, -- Yes, (20)

Lyl

And have you had any reaction from them in particular,

the/...
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~ this was handed to you. -- Early in the morning it was found
on the campus.

Did the students of the school in Thaba lchu react to
this? —-- They did not.

Where do you feel this emanated from? —-- VWell, I am not
too certain about it, whether it was the students from Horoka
or it was the people from Soweto, that I cannot say.

You do not know. —- Eecause previously, on the 2%th
October, I addressed the students, because they had threatened
not to write the examination and I addressed the students (10)
at lMoroka, 1 talked to them and advised them to write the
examination. That was on a Friday and then on londay this
thing was distributed, but they wrote their examination.

What did you say to the students? —-- YWell, I just asked
the students if they knew whait they were doing. I reminded
them of the difficulties of their parents, I reminded themnm
what the parents had done for them thus far and that they were
spoiling their future if they did not write the examination.
They listened and then on Monday they wrote the examinatiocn,
Up to now they are still writing. (20}

And they are still writing examinations without any
incident or difficulty. —- They are still writing.

Full attendance. —-- That is right.

Will you tell liis Lordship what in general is the
relationship of, first of all, yourselfl, between yourself and
the European headmasters and the European teachers who serve
under you? —- The relationship between me and the kureopean
principals in my circuit is very, very healthy.

In the course of your consultation you referred to them
as your friends. —-- As my friends, yes. (30)

And they. reciprocate and refer Lo you as their {riend, ——
That/...
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the Soweto students? Any reaction from them? —- Well,
unfortunately, you knew, as an inspector of schools, wWhen one
addresses the students, you cannot say this student comes Irom
Soweto because you do not know them.

Are there any other recasons you would care %o advance
for the riots that took place? You have mentioned two of them.
-- Ilo.

Is there anything else you would like to say? -- llo.

How, there 1s one more point I want to put to you and
that is the excuse that has been advanced in some places, (10)
that the students objected to being taught certain subjects
in Afrikaans. Have you ever encountered that in all jyour
experience? -- llo, I have not, but now in Thaba ILichu for
instance, the medium of instruciion is Sotho, it is unlike in
the urban areas - is English, I am sorry. Iio subjects are
taught through the medium of Afrikeans. The government chose
English as the medium of instruction in Bophuthatswana.

But Afrikaans is taught as a lenguage., —-— Aflrikaans is
taught as a language.

ind it is also spoken. -- It is also spoken. (20)

Is there anything else you would like to tell His Lordship?
I have exhausted my questions. -- llo.

I have no further questions, IN'Lord.

NO FURTHER LUESTIONS,

MR HLUNGWALI: IM'Lord, the next witness will ve Ir Dan lieletsi.

CHAIRMAIT: DIMr Yutar, the order still stands about the

witnesses?

DR YUTAR: If Your Lordship pleases.

CHAIRMAN: The order stands for the last witness who has Jjust

given evidénce as well. In fact I think the application (30)
was made on behall of all the witnesses and one of them said

he/eee
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he did not require this, lr Ven foweren.

DATT MEIETST: sworn states:
MR HLULIGWAITI: You are the chairman of the Urban Bantu Council?
-— 188,

In Bloemfontein, -- Yes,

Could you perhaps tell the Commission if you had any
trouble in the township? -- fctually in Bloemfontein we
haven't got a lot of troubles except isolated cases here and
there from the school children, not from the town as a whole.

You did not have any trouble {rom the non-scholars (10)
joining up with the school children? -- ot as far as 1 know.

To what would you ascribe the little trouble that you
had? What might have caused that? —-- Well, after the riots I
went round to the parents of the little students who were
involved in the case and then one of the students was telling
me that the cause is they are taught through the medium of
Afrikaans and the teacher who is teaching them in Afrikaans
is not well-versed in Afriksans,., TDow they cannot explain
— he cannot express himselfl freely in Afrikaans, so they
prefer English and Afrikeans be taught as a subject. (20)
The other parents they would noi agree that the children were
in that trouble.

llow since the Afrikaans problem started - the iAfrikaans
question in fact started in Sowelo, how did it then come to
your area? -- Well, on the whole I think 1 will say these
children are reading a lot in the press. They got all this
information from the press because everything that - they
became interested in reading the press since that time.

So you think the press might have influcnced them? —- The
press might be the influence to that, (20)

You also gathered information from the school board. You

went,/ ...
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went to ask the school board about the efficiency of the
teachers in teaching +frikesns., What did you find? ~- I
got from members of the school board that they have made that
investigation and they got the same thing that teachers -
the children were complaining about the Alrikaans taught in
schools, but taught by teachers who do not know it.

In consultation you actually put up some other gricvances
of your people in the township as regards you people as
members of the Urban Council. -- Yes, I can put some grievances
that they level to us by the public that I mean that I (10)
may say 1t is a lack of powers because everything, when they
ask something from us, we cannot get it because we have %o
ask anything that we have to do or anything that we have to
send to the people, we have to get the permission from the
Administration Board.

You are called some names herc, Wwhat names are you called?
—— When we read in the press we find that we are called by
the names: councillors are nothing but castrated bulls,

For example which newspaper - from which nevwspaper did you
read that? -- We got that from The iriend and also from (20)
the Rand Taily HMail.

Vhy do the people ecall yeu that? -- It is because they
cannot get anything tangible from us, we are lacking powers
so we haven't got powvers say of tellins them exactly what they
want. If they want something, they eannot pet anything Irom
us, that is why they are calling us those names.

Because you do not have power to solve their problems.

—-— No,

I asked wvou specifically which problems they have and

you mentioned something about electricity. What is the (350)

actual thing about il? -= Elcciricity is onc of them, housing

. #
l"':-;uf'l--q-
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is one of them, housing is the most important that people are
lacking and then definitely that is the thing that causes

the people to say that and they also claim %hat our roads are
not worth while, our recads are not too good and also some other
things that need attention.

ind water? —-- And the water also.

What is the position of water? —- They want it, the
workers in their yards some of them and they want electricity
in their houses, but we cannot get that because we have no
power to do so. (10)

But have you ever spoken to the authority aboul tThese
grievances? —- I think that ever since ... (inauvdible) ..
we have been trying all we could to get those things
straightened wup, but the answer is always lack of funds, that
is always the answer.

What about the refuse system? -- The refuse system, it is
not one of the best things because the troutle lies with the
buckets. Ve are still using the bucket systen.

You are still using the bucket system? —- The bucket
sy stem, yes, that is one of the most troublesome things (20)
in our township.

So your people would like to get sewerage. —-- They would
prefer sewerage, but we have been promised that sewerage is
coming, but up to now it has not yet been able to come.

Now, you have been telling me avout these grievances, not
as a cause of the present riots, but something that might at
a later stage cause some friction. -- Yes., The thing that
might cause future riots it is the very same thing that I have
just mentioned, one of th em, that is housing. That is going
to cause a. lot of trouble because people haven't got (50)
the place and they are doing nothing else and, No. 2, they

haven't/
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haven't got enough money, they haven't got enough, if they
wanted to buy houses, they zre not allowed to buy houses and
secondly they = if they wanted to buy housas the deposit is

so high that they could not reach it. Iiow they always compare
these things why .. (background noisec) ... is not like =al1l
other countries. ILike in Johannesburs and all other towns,

in Bloemfontein the deposit is so high, it is RYY1 deposit,
which the house is Rl Y71. Now they say it is too hirh,

All those things in my opinion I think they mzy cause sonme
other trouble at a later stare. (10)

Do you sazy other towns and other arcas do not pay such
a deposit? Is there any difference? —- Exactly the)y say frono
Johannesburs people started peying R200 deposit in buying a
house, they pay a2 deposit of RZ00 not as we do on this side.
The charge is not uniformn.

Is there anything you want to add? -~ Actually ne, I
have nothing more to add in that I think that is all 1 could
say up to the noment.

If you have somecthing, one of your colleagues will add 1
Guite so. (20)

I have no further guestions, Ii'Lord,

N0 FURTIIER ¢ ULSLUI0NS.

MR BLURGWALIYI: Next I will call lr Stephen Usatsinyana,

STEPHEN TSATSIIIYAIIA: sworn states:

MR HLUNGWAIIL: You are also a c¢iviec leacder in that you are a
member of a school board. —-- Correct.

You heard what your colleague testified? —-- Correct.

Do wvou confirm that? -- I want to confirm that.

Do you have something to add on what he said or to
elaborate on some of the things he snid? —-—= I am afraid (50)
I may be making an ordinary unnecessary repetition in that

really/ e..
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really he has, as far as schools are concerned, covered the
most important issue, that is now the question of Lfrikaans in
that the children are complaining, we feel the same in that
teachers fail to stress the fact that they are capable of
teaching in /friksans and thatiis the position.

I felt that you might have somethineg to add on housing,

I mean to elaborate a bit more on lousing, as I think all of
you actually raised it as grievance Ilo. 1. == When we get to
housing I think IMr Heletsi who is now the chairman of our
U.B.C. Council, I think has tried to put up this issue (10)
in that it is the common e¢ry, lack of accommodation, that is
the common c¢ry, lack of accommodation.

fis a man connected with the Administration, what is the
water problen like? —-- The question of water is that 1t is
now I cannot feltch from outsicde in the streets instead of
it being supplied in every yard. I think that is just a
problem that may be there, that we get water from the street
instead of getting water from every yard., In this we feel,
well it may be not safe tecause we hoave Yo send daughters to
the particular street with the present position, with our (20)
young boys being out of control it 15 absolutely unsafle,

Yes, I would also like you to comment on the housing
where you said, actually all of you said that there were sone
gspecific areas where a person is allowed to buy a house and
there are some others where actually it is not allowed to buy
a house, -— In explaining that issue, at the moment I think
there is a big problem as far as that question is concerned in
that the councillors were intereste? to see that everybody
who has a chance Lo buy the house ke does occupy that belongs
to the Board of Administration. But it appears on some  (59)

technicalities it has been a bit impossible. I thinlk that is

LS

Just/...
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just a question where now there is some confusion, there seems
to be no uniformity in the whole thing in that then they get
to papers and read that in our areas this is the position.

It is just that the people are not quite settled and not
satisfied very well.

The Department of Bantu Administration has now issued
- they said something to the effecl Lhat a few people in the
township are allowed to buy houses. Iliow what is the difference
in there? —- That is what the councillor, lir leletsi, the
chairman, that there seems to be no uniformity. It is (10)
the man who legislates and then comes the man who administers
and there seens to be that problem that they feel what they
get from papers seem not to be the same. They met what happens
in Johannesburg, they get what hanpens in other places,
finally they get what they are having in Bloemfontein, they
do not actually agree,

Will I be right to say that there is difference of inter-
pretation? -- &is I said the question, there is a man who
legislates and 2 man who does administer, that may be the
problem. (20)

Is {the Bantu Administration DLoard aware of these problems?

If I am not wrong in that I am not attending their meetings,
but what has been said by lir lMeletsi I think they are awvare
of that,.
You do not have anything to add teo that?-- Nolhing more.
Tﬁﬁnk you, M'Lord, I do not have further questions.

CHAITHIAN: On the school board have you discussed this guestion

of the language medium? —-- This has actually to come forward
and discussed by the board aftcr the board had finally dcemandcd
that every school, the staff has to justifly and say (-0)

exactly what is our opinion as far as medium of instruction

isﬂf’lt-
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is conerned, but what you are finding is absolutely all the
schools have sugpgested medium of instruction English, Afriksans
be taken as an ordinary subject,

Is that what was the general feeling of 2ll the schools?
—— That is the general meaning of all the schools,

Were there then schools at that stage complaining about
wanting this to be the policy and they still had to teach
certain subjects through Afrikaans medium? == In fact they
had to continue until the end of this year.

Yes, well, I suppose that is so, that they do not (10
change in the middle of the year. -- That is the position.

But the problem has been solved for next year? —-— with
all the hope that our Bantu Education Departmeni may consider
the reguest made by the various school boards,

Eave you ever heard this complaint {that the education
which the Blaclt children are getting is inferior? -- liot very.
Actually to my mind I think people are only worried by the
term that we are all usually using 'Bantu' education.

The name? -- Just the name I think personally. Otherwise
I do not see the .. (inaudible) of the whole thing. (20)

Yes, thank you very much.

R0 FURTIER wUESTIONS.

MR HLUNGWAIIZ: IM'Lord, I will call Iir latshumi as the next

witness.

KORQ PP, MAYWSUINI: sworn states:

MR HLUNGWAINI: You are one of the members of the Urban Bantu

Council? == I am.
Mr Dan lieletsi is your chairman? -- lic is.
Do you confirm everything he said? -- 1 do,
Do you have anything to add to what he said? —-- 1 (20)

do not have anything to add, 1 think he has covered everything.
You/...
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You do not feel you have to elaborate on any point he
mentioned? -- Ilo, unless there are questions which may lead
me to it.

I have no questions to put to this witness.

CHATRIMAN: There is trouble about the = or rather discontent

about the owning of houses. Is that correct? —-- It is correct.
And can your council help the people when they for
example want to buy houses? -~ Well, the way in which they
help them is by giving exXplanations of conditions under which
they can buy. For instance, they know that there are (10)
houses for a certain amount, with a deposit of so much and
an instalment of so much, but the complaint arises that the
deposit is too high and of course some of them coy we cannot
afford such a deposit, our wages are low,
Have 7ou ever heard the children, that is the school
children say that the boards are not really useful at 211? —-
Not the school children, I have not heard them at all szy so.

Do you think that the discipline of the children in jour

Lt

area is good? —— Comparatively it is geood. 1In my opinion jus

outside influence pgained through nerha reading news- (20)

'
it

papers or nixing with some visitors who come from outside.
In my opinion I want to say that the Bloemfontein publice is
well-behaved.

You do not think the children of today are worse than the
children in your days? -- %ell, I will say the adult pubii

the children are giving a lot of trouble. It appears it i

it

the trend these days with children to be wayward.

Why do you think that is? You have given an explanation
that they get this sort of thing in the news. —-- Yes.

They read it. —-- Yes, I said so. They rcad these (30)
things and I believe we do have visitors coming from these

bi{:f‘ri - "
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big centres into Blocmiontein und they Ao get into touch wit
our children and our children get into touch with themvhen
they go out visiting other schools.

Do you think that they give more trouble than you gave
to your parents? —- Very much more,

You know, don't we always think that the children of
today are not as good as the children of our days? —- I do
not know what will chanrce my nind from that. The children
of today are no example as conmpared to those of our days.

Thank you very much, (10

R0 FURTHER LUBSTICIS.

MR HLULIGWAIIT: IT'"Lord, my next witness will be Iir Lawrence

Gxabuza.

LAWREIICE GAABRUZA: sworn states:

MR HIUNGWANT: Just speak as if you are giving a lesson. -- Ies,.

LAUGIHTE]

You are the principal of the lower primary school called
Ikwezi, -- Yes,

In the Thamanens Township, =- Yes

Your school is adjacent to Thobe iigher I'rimary (20)
School. -- Yes.

Which also is a Xhoza school. -- Yeos.

You have no problem with your school. —— So far I have
no problem.

You have got good control of your children? —-- Yes,

On the 20th August could you just tell us what you saw
happening in the neighbouring school? -- On the Z0th August
at about roughly 1Yh45 to 18hC0 in the afternoon, while I was
in the street with my neighbour, we were discussing in general,
I saw flames in one of the classroons ol the Ihobe (50)

Higher Primary School.

The /e
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The principzal of that school will pive full evidence on
that, but I would particularly want you to tell the Commission
what you noticecd when you got there. You helped to extinguish
the fire, but what did you notice in the classroom? -- Ingide
the classroom I noticed the following: that petrol was
smearcd over on top of the desks and the lable next To the
door, not behind the door, the othcr side of the door, was
burning, it was in flames at the corner of the table. OUn
the floor there were spots of petrol with flames. Those are
the places we extinguished when we got inside there. (10)

On the blackbozard what did you notice? —-= On the black-
board there was & paragraph, from what I saw it was an
extract from the I’iet Retief lManifesto in history.

And what did it actually szy more or less? -- The thenme
of this paragraph is concerning liberty and freedom.

As far as you could see would a pupil have written that?
- lio, so far, no.

It appeared to have been an educated adult who wrote

that? —~ Yes, an adult.

CHATIRIIAN: The handwriting, is this the handwriting (20)

that you thought was not 2 pupil? —- The idea, the idea of
the paragraph it was not, in my eyes .. (intervencs)

IR HLUNGWATI: The contents. —-— The contents it was something

above the children.

CHATRLAT:  And what could you say about the handwriting?

Did it look like a pupil's handwriting? -- It was a fine
handwriting, a clear handwriting, not a pupil's handwriting.

MR HLULGWALIT: As a teacher you know, you do blackboard work.

Do vou think it was done by somcbody trained in that? -- Yes,
it was in 4 straight line although there were no lines, (50)

but it was strairht .
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A5 if a person has been trained in blackboard work., -- feg.
M'Lord, I have no further questions.

CHAIRIAN Just before you go, 1z il not possible that a

-

teacher might have written it for a class? —-- Well, it might be
a teacher, but it is not a& child, that is impossible that it
was a child who wrote +that paragraph on the ooard.

Thank you very much,

IO VURTEER QUBSTINNS.

ADV, VAN GRAAIT: Edele, die volgende getuie is mnr, HendriXs,

CHATIRIIAIT: Iir Hlungwani, the witnesses who have given (10

evidence, they all want to fall under the order I have nade
of no names or identity?

MR HLUIIGWALT: Yes.

CHATIRIILAIT: ‘what about IMr lHendriks?

.n"!-I!v- ‘lf-“l'.r G&UI _'....,..l * C:Iﬂ}: EG’ J.:dclt:-l

JACCRBUS CLHRISTOYFEL EEIDRILG: wergloar onder eed:

ADV. VAl GRAAN: U is skoolhoof van die Tioroksa Ilo¥rsiiool en

Ambagskool by Thaba Lichu, -- it 15 reg.

Voor 21 Julie was u bewus danrvan of daar cnige ongerymd-
hede in die skole opmerksasm was? —-- Bedoel u 21 Julie? (20)

Junie, -- Junie?

Ja, -- Hee, ek was nie bewus daarvan niec.

Op 19 Junie het daar nie 'n voorval by die skool plaas-
gevind nie? Het u nie 'n indruk van leerlinge gekry oor 'n
sekere houding van hulle met betrekking tol die gebeure in
Soweto nie? ——= Daar was op die aand van 19 Junie was ek ont-
bied na die koshuisvader en die hoof van die koshuise en dnax
was 'n paar van die kapteins en prefekte met 'n versoek van
die senior leerlinpge, skynbaar mcer van die seuns leerlinge
om, alhoewel dit eksamen was, huis toe te gaan, ondat (50)
hulle nie geweet het wat in Sowetn mot hulle mense gebeour nie.

Het/. ..
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Het die skolec toe inderdand gesluit? -- Ons het die
sekretaris van Onderwys dic aand reskakel venaf die "warden"
se huis af en hy het nie self 'n telefoon fiie, maar ons het
toe met hom in kontak gekom. Hy het ons belowe dat hy ons
die Maandag sou laat weet of ons moet sluit of nie. Gedurende
die nag van - die Sondagnag het dasr 'n brand ook in
Bophuthatswana gebied te lebron uitgebreek by die skool en

ons, mnr. Visser en ek is verwitiis op die Sondag dat ons

die leerlinge onmiddellik moes huis toe stuur. Ons kon dit

egter nie voor die lMaandagmiddag die leerlinge wegkry (10)
nie,

Toe het u die skool op die Zlste gesluit? -- Ja.

lanneer het die skole weer heroven? —— Die normale

openingsdatum was 20 Julie, maar soos dit gaan kom leerlinge
baie traag terug gedurende die maand,

Ek volg. Kan u sé watter volgende insident belangrik is
tot die getuienis wat u wil lewer? Yatter datum? -- Wel, 6
Augustus het daar eintlik, toe iets belangriks gebeur voor
die tyd niks besonders nie, alhoewel ek moet eintlik noem die
21st Julie was daar 'n inbraak in die ambapgskool en die (20)
gsaak is verhoor. Die persoon wat daar tereg gestaan het is
Kenana Nkuge van Yelkom. Iiy het anparaatl daar beskadig en hy
was aangekla gewees vir sabotasie.

VOORSITIER: Is dit weer die boor? —-= Dit is die boor.

En diec gassilinder? —-— Ja.

ADV. VAW GRAAN: Het u in daardie week voor 6 Augustus 'n

laksheid onder die studente waargencem? —-- Ja.

En dan was u by die skool gewees loe die probleme op 6
Augustus plaasgevind het waarna u nnjoor Heunis ontbied het.
—— Ek was -by die skool. (320)

Edele, ek twyfel of dit nodin is dat die getuie weer
die/...
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die gebeure van & Augustus moot herhaal, aangesien majoor
Heunis dit wvollediz behandel het, ¥Wat het op 14 September
plaasgevind? —- Op 14 Ceptember het die koshuils owerhede dic
middag tydens .. (agtergrond geraas) ... 'n ultimatum aan
leerlinre peripg om die ondernemingsvorms in te bring. Dit was
baie duidelilk dat die ondernemingsvorns om verskeie redes
terugpehou was tot op dazardie stadium. Gedurende daardie
middag het ons ongeveer 120 ondernenmingsvorms tussen 15h00 en
17h00 terug ontvang, wat 'n bewys was dat die leerlinge 4it in
hulle sakke pehad het en dit net nie wou inlewer nie, (10)

Was daar toe 'n verdere voorval op 15 September wat ver-
band hou met die ondermeningsvorms? —- Op 15 Septenmber was
daar nie Juis 'n voorval nie. Uit was die middag waarop ons
geretl het onder polisie beskerming dat leerlinge wat nie
onderneningsvorns of losiesgelde betaal het nie, moes huis toe
gestuur word.

Wat het op 21 September plaasgevind? —- Op 21 September -
ek dink ek moet by 20 September besmin, 20 Seplenmber, die
middag, het die koshuisvader, hoof van die koshuise en ek 'n
vergadering gehad met 'n groep studente van 16 wat (20)
hulleself verteenwoordigers penocn het van 'Students

Representative Council'. IHiulle wou gehad het ons moet hulle

=

o

konstitusie onderteken. Die konstitusiec was 'n psar dae vante-
vore aan my pcltoon, maar nadat elt dit deurgelees het, het ek
gevoel dat dit aan studente regte sou gee wat heellemal
ondermynend vir die gesag van die skool cou wees., Lk het die
oggend van die 20ste met ons plaaslike inspekteur in tceen-
woordigheid van ds. Taylor gepraat oor dic konstitusie en hy
het ook gevocl dat ons nie die konstitusic moet ondericken nie,
Die middag van die 20ste het ons toe nou vergadering gehad (70)

met daardic studente en aan hulle verduidelilr dat hwlle wel

kan/. ..
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kan organiscer om die samewerking van ander studenie te kry
om weer erns aan hulle studies te wrr en dat daar nie 'n
konstitusie voor nodig is nie,

Verskoon my dat ek u onderbreek, Hetl die studente enipe
feite aan u meegedeel waarvan u ontevredenheid van hulle kant
af kon aflei? -~ VWel, tydens die verpgadering na end se kant
toe gestaan het, het van die studenve gesé: what about our
grievances, what shall we tell our colleagues?

Wat was hulle 'grievances'? —- Waarskynlik die petisie
wat aan die Seliretaris van Bantoe-Cnderwys - Sekretaris (10)
van die Bophuthatswana Onderwys oorhandig was.

Is die petisie op & Augustus aan die sekretaris ocorhandip?
-- Dit is reg.

Weet u wat die inhoud desarvan was? --— Die eerste punt het
ek gelees.

En wat was dit gewees? =-= Dit was 'n eis gewees van
'release our detainee' en dan die nzam van die beskuldigde
wat by die ambagskool ingebreek het., Daar was nog lets by,
maar ek kan dit nie onthou nie.

U kan nie verder onthou wat die inhoud daarvan was (20)
nie? —-— lee. Wat ek wel kan onthou dat diec eis was dat dit
om 12 namiddag nmoes wees.

Edele, ck het geen verdere vrac nie,

VOORSITTLEH: Yet u nooit enige moeillikheid gehad met bvetrek-

king tot die taalmedium nie, medium van onderrig? -- liee,
soos reeds aan u meegedeel is dat ons onder Bophuthatswana
Repering reeds voor die welgewing alrecds oorgeskakel het na
Engels medium vir alle vakke behalwe Afrikaans.

En daar was geen beswaar teen Afrikaans as sulks nie? -—-
Daar was nooit 'nm beswaar teenoor my cerig nie, alhoewel (Z0)

'n opmerking op een van die swartborde tydens die dag van 6
Aupustus/, .,
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Aupgustus.geskryl is.

Wat was dit gewees? —-- Ek kan nie die presiese woorde
onthou nie, dit was net iets in verband met Afrikaans, maar
dit was niks besonders nie. Dit is gefotografeer deur die
Speurdiens,

GEEIl VERDERE VRAE.

ADV, VAl GRAAII: Edele, die volgende getuie is mnr. Simon IHgeine,

SIMON MGCIHA: sworn states:

ADV. VAL GRAAN: You have been principal of the Thobe lligher

Primary and Secondary School., —— Yes. (10)

Where is that school situated? -- It is in Rocklands,

How many pupils do you have there? -- 2907 pupils
altogether.

Did you have any problems at your school before the 20th
August, 1976? —~-~ Before the 20th August, 1976, we had no
problem in the school.

Did you have any trouble on the 20th August, 1976, at
the secondary scheool? -- Yes, we had trouble on that date.

An attempt was made to burn the school. _

Did you perhaps observe a strike there by the (20)
students? Did they refuse to go into the classes? -- On the
20th they did not refuse to go into the classes, they were in
the classes the whole day and their attempt to burn the school
was only after school, late in the afternoon.

Did you have a strike there on any other date? -- lo.

On Monday, the 23rd, the strike started.

Why did they strike? —-- They were protesting apainst the

taking of the students by the police for questioning on the

23rd.

The -pupils that the police arrested, were they (20)

#

invoelved in the criminal charge of attempt of arson? —- They

were/...
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were involved,

Did they take part in the attempt on the 20th August? --
Yes, they did take part.

What happened on the 26th August, 19767 -- On the 26th
August the students broke the desks in the school and that

case has still to come Lo court,

Is that at the secondary school? —- That is at the
secondary school.

Did you receive any threats from inhabitants of your
area? -- Yes, I did receive threats. (10)

From whom? —-— One threat which came indirectly, it came
through somebody else, a certain nursing sister at Tilonomi(?)
Hospital said to a taximan who was conveying them, a parent
of the convicted students that it was high time that they
organised youngsters from Soweto to come and burn my house and
destroy me with my family.

Did the parents of the detainees approach the school boarc
in order to get rid of you as principal of the secondary
school? —-- Yes, they wrote a letter to the school committee
which was read in the school committee in my presence and (20)
also in the school board. The school board has not acted on
the letter up to this present moment,

What is the cause of these unrests at your school? --

I think that the unrest at my school is due to agitation by
some adults. I think they incite the pupils.

Do you have proof for that statement? ~- I cannot
substantiate it fully, but one parent came to tell me one day
that one of my teachers came to collect the very leader of the
students at 12 o'clock midnight. Incidentally the teacher
got lost and got into the wrong house and that aroused (30)
my suspicion.

What/. ..
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wWhat was the date when he paid a visit to that house,
the teacher? Can you remember the date? —-- The date 1 cannot
remember, but it was before the riot.

At your school? —- Yes, before the riot at my school.

Before the 20th August. —- Yes.

Did you find any pamphlets at Fyour school at any stage
during the riots? —- Yes, on the 2£8th September I found the
Black Power pamphlet in one of the classrooms and I sent
a pamphlet of each one to the school committee, one to the
school board and one to the circuit office and when I (10)
came back I found the bulk of the pamphlets removed, they had
just disappeared.

Were the pamphlets typed or in what manner were they
written on the pamphlets? —- They were typed and apparently
put through a roneo machine,

What was the contents of the pamphlet? -- They were on
Black Power and it was actually the outside of the pamphlet
was a picture of a monster and then the words written 'Black
Power'. Inside the pamphlet on the inside part was writlen
the mamner in which to incite the pupils by way of showing (20)
them their grievances and how they are ill-treated and then
in future the one who controls them will be able to do any-
thing with them.

Do you have a copy of that pamphlet? —- Unfortunately 1
do not have a copy. I had just gone to the Education Depart-
ment anithey told me that they passed the copy to the police,

What was the colour of that pamphlet? —-- It was yellowish

in colour.

CHATRMAN: You will make investigations about the lfinding of

that pamphlet? (30)

ADV. VAN GRAAN: Yes, I will do so, M'Lord. I am not so sure,
but/...
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but I think we came upon that psmphlet or a similar pamphlet

in the Rustenburg area,

CHATRITAL If the police has been handed one, sece whether we

can get a copy which can be compared with the one that we have,

ADV., VAN GRAAN: Do you know what the penuine - or rather

what is one of the grievances that you are aware of amongst
your pupils? -- One of the grievances of my people that I anm
aware of was the fact that the secondary school students wanted
their own school building.

Are the pupils of both schools accommodated in one (10)
complex? -- Yes, they are accommodated in one building.

CHAIRIIANN: In other words, the senior students wanted to be

away from the junior students? -- Yes,

What do you think of that, you as a principal? Do you
think they ought to be separated? —- I think they ought to be
separated.

Doesn't it make the organisation of teaching somewhat
difficult when you have teach for the younger children, the
primary children and the high school children? Do you use
separate teachers for the one section and separate teachers (20)
for the other? —- Yes. The secondary school teachers are
separate and the primary school teachers are also separate
teachers.,

How many teachers are there? —- There are 8 in the

secondary school department and 15 in the primary school sector

ADV. VAN GRAAI;: The previous witness referred to a slogan that
was observed on the blackboard in one of the classes. Did you
also observe that slogan? -- I observed it.
Now, to whiclh situation did that slogan refer to? -- It
is actually an extract from the lManifesto of Piet Retief. (30)
Did you think at that time that the slogan was relevant

tﬂf’lil‘i
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to the circumstances at your schocl? -- It was not relevant

to the circumstances at my school although when I asked a teache:
about it, he said he wrote it as he was teaching on the Great
Trek.

Do you have any White teachers at your school? -- No, we
are all Black,

Can you describe the relationship between the teachers
and the pupils at your school? -- The relationship between the
teachers and the pupils at my school is good. It has always
been good with the exception perhaps of one teacher who  (10)
joined our staff in about June and incidentally the pupils
happened to resent her and that I attribute to her incompetence,

Your school is a XZhoza school? -- It is a Xhoza school.

Do you have pupils from other areas? -- We have pupils
from other areas,

Now, the ringleader of the lot at your school and the
pupils who were convicted, are they local pupils or are they
from other areas? =- They are all local pupils.

Did you have any particular trouble with pupils from cther
areas? —— I haven't had trouble with them, except one (20)
who is to appear before court in the group that I have just
mentioned that is still to come before court. That is one
who happens to be an outsider,

What was the medium of instruction at your school during
the year? -- It has always been a dual medium of instruction;
we are teaching through English and Afrikaans.

Are you going to use only English as a medium next yecar?
—— The school bBoard decided that (of course I was present)
to avoid possible trouble in future, English be used as the
medium of instruetion, with Afrikaans getting the more (30)
periods as a subject.

Who/ ..
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Who is chairman of the school boeard who took this
decision? —- The chairman of the school board at the present
day is Ilir lMadolo and it is his bozrd that took that decisiong
Mr Frans ladolo.

Who was the previous chairman of that school board? --
Previously the chairman was Ilr Kayo, he followed MHr ligalo.

Was - did HMr lligalo retire or how come that he is not
the chairman of the board any more? -- He was dismissed by
the Department of Bantu Education.

Why was he dismissed? —— He was not following the (10)
regulations as stipulated by the Department.

What did he do? -- There were many irregularities that
he made, ©One that I can mention, a certain teacher, IHr Ehula,
was appointed by him and one member of the board. Well,
in actual fact teachers are to be appointed by a fully-lledged

board.

That teacher that you referred to, what is his name? —

Masiko Khula.

Was he dismissed in 19717 —- He was dismissed in 1971 by
Mr Kayo's school board. (20)
Why was he dismissed? —- lMr Khula was involved in several

troubles in the school and the community. He was causing a
turmoil and misunderstanding.

Amongst the teachers? -- Amongst the teachers and amongst
the school board and so on.

No further questions, M'Lord.

HO FURTHER QUESTIOQIS,

ADV,. JACOBS: M'Lord, the next witness will be lMr Lebona

Motsoeneng.

TLEBONA MOTSOENENG: sworn states: (30)

ADV. JACOBS: I1'Lerd, the witness has no objection to his name

being/...
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being published.

CHATRIIAII: Well, up to now the names and identities may not

be - were not allowed to be published. In the case of this

witness it may be published.

ADV. JACOLS: Tou are at present holding the following offices:

secretary of the lManaung Chamber of Commerce, that is the
Bloemfontein Chamber of Commerce. -~ Correct.

You are a school committee member and you have 5 years'
experience, as you said, of the pleasures and displeasures
of being a member of the school committee., 1Is that (10)
correct? -- Correct.

And then you are also a parent with children attending
school at primary and at high school level, -- Correct.

Thus you have also experience of the pleasures and dis-
pleasures of fatherhood, —-- Very much so,

You did not have any riots within the normal sense of
the word, but you did have problems in Bleemfontein., Is that
correct? —-— Correct.

What is the possible reason for the trouble in Bloemfon-
tein, according to your views? -- With regard to schools? (20)
The language issue in the first place, =- As far as 1
know and can remember the language problem has not been a
thorny issue in Bloemfontein, except that African students

find Afrikaans a difficult language.

Why so0? == For reasons I am not able to explain, but they
feel English is an easier subject and language, they can learn
better in English, they are better able to express themselves
in English and one other reason why students in general do not
favour Afrikaans as a medium of instruction is because there
are very few Black teachers who are as proficient in (30)
English as they are in Afrikaans and when they have to give

instruetion/...
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instruction in Afrikaans, students find themselves in problens
during examination time because their standard of Afrikaans is
always disappointing.

Are they opposing Afrikaans as such or only as a medium
of instruction? -- fccording to my information, most Black
students would like to study Afrikaans as a subject, not as
a medium of instruction.

How do you feel about Afrikaans as a language and not as
a medium of instruction? -~ I feel whether a student studies
courses through the medium of Afrikesans or not, if he (10)
studies Afrikaans as a subject, he does literature, he does
drama in Afrikaans, more so in the I'ree S5tate we sgpeak to
European friends and you do business through the medium of
Afrikaans whenever we come into touch with the European
community and as such I do not find any difficulty in any person
either learning Afrikaans or expressing himself in 2Airikaans.

You yourself speak Afrikasans fluently. -- I do, though
not to the same extent as I am in English.

Now you can proceed. The reaction of the IHinister of
Bantu Administration to the violence. —— As a member (20)
of a school committee for a number of years and my thorough
communication with Black intellectuals, the reaction of the
Honourable Minister of Bantu Administration and Development
to allow Blacks to decide the language of instruction at all
Black schools was welcome and received with the greatest
enthusiasm.

So there is no problem about the language issue any more.
Is that correct? -- No problem whatsoever.,

And then the political aspecis of the grievances amongst
your people, are there any? —- There are too many of them (Z0)
to mention. The causes of Black frustrations are numerous.

14"’1!!
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I am one of the men deeply involved in the plight and frustra-
tions which Blacks suffer at the hands of White controlled
institutions. In the interests of this Commission of

Inquiry I will discuss one well-known organisation to sub-
stantiate my allegation, namely Blacks suffer frustrations at
the hands of White controlled institutions. I will take the
U.B.C.

How is the U.B.C. generally known in your community in
Bloemfontein, the Black community? -- I am treating it as an
example of what I think is the main cause of complaints (10)
and grievances of the Black community.

But how is the U.B.C, called? -~ There are so many names
coined to ridicule the U.B.C. by virtue of the fact that it 1is
not an effective body of representatives, They call it - well,
somebody called it this, but I know the name which is usually
used, it is called a 'Ja Baas Group', mesning that they agree
with the White man whatever he does to a Black community.

To expound, Parliament has passed an act in 19061 in terms of
which the Urban Bantu Council is by law a status body vested
with executive powers. Now, the question is, why are (20)
these executive powers not given the Urban Bantu Council to
exercise for the benefit of the Black community? Are there
any other authority other than Farliament which has juris-
diction to withhold the right of authority which Parliament
has granted the Urban Bantu Council to exercise in the
interests of the community which the U.B.C. has been elected
to represent effectively? FMurther, the Black man suffecrs
the inhuman decentralisation of power and administration.
Take the Administration Boards which are so unpopular with
the Black communities. Excuse me, I do not refer to a (30)
specific Bantu Administration Board, 1 am generalising, but 1

do/..s
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do have grievances about the personal treatment which my
people and myself receive at the hands of the Bantu
Administration Board locally. 1 do not express my opinion, I
am stating facts and the truth.

Are you referring to the treatment by senior officials
or the junior officials? -~ We come into contact daily with
the most junior and whatever dissatisfaction one receives, one
takes it up to the higher authorities or to the higher coffice,
but it is sometimes surprising when you are told by a higher
office that the higher office is not aware of what is (10}
happening at the lower levels. 7You request on bended knee
that the grievances which had not been taken into consideration
by the lower office should be handled effectively by the higher
office, but still in numerous cascs you still find no help.
We have superintendents, we have managers who deal with us
daily and the highest offices are those of the directors.
Time does not allow me to expound further. In conclusion I
may say one of the offices which Black people mingle day by day
for help, pleading for humanitarian treatment and consideration
is the Bantu Affairs Commissioner's Office. 014 (20)
people, sick pecople. I cannot very much complain of having
been ill-treated, I am not here to express personal views orT
objective considerations,

I{ you have any personal grievances, you may menbtion it,.
== Thank you. I am merely expounding on what is happening
to my people in general and I am also a victim of promises
which have never been fulfilled for a number of 10 full years,
these pgiven promises,

Can you just mention one or two of these promises? —-- I
personally applied in 1964 for for a business site in (30)
the township and to this day all I have been receivinp are

promices/...
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promises. The day will come when I will be given a final say
as to go on with the business., I mentioned in my lasti
application that I will have financial means to finance the
project which 1 have been requesting in many applications
which I am not even able to count - ten years is a stretch of
time - and I have just been told to wait., In conclusion I
would like to say the difference between a law-zbiding and a
non-law-abiding Black does not exist.

Can you elaborate on that? -- A Black medical practitioner
or a Black law practitioner, a Black grave-digger, intec (10)
the eyes of the White man, just a Black man - no difference.

S50 what you want to say is that the White people think
of the Black people just as a group? -- Correct.

I want to say this attitude has forced Blacks, although
very reluctantly, to regard a White man as an enemy of the
Black man. The future of mutual race relations in this
country depends on the treatment of Blacks, particularly by
the Bantu Administration Board. Black leaders met the Prime
Minister, the Honourable lMr Vorster in Fretoria and they
also expressed the same view that Blacks suffer at the (20)
hands of the official of the Bantu Affairs Administration,
Thank you very much, Your Lordship.

One last question. What do you think of the policy of
apartheid? You discussed that also. -~ The best policy is
apartheid if all the aspects thereof are applied without
reservations and the worst policy is the policy of discrimina-
tion., If apartheid can be exercised in a manner that a Black
man in the urbah area should be given the right to run his own
affairs, I think There will be quiet and peace in this countr,
in the urban areas. And that is apartheid, (20)

No further questions, M'Lord.

NO FURTHER QUEST IONS.
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MR VAIl GRAAII: M'Lord, the next witness is Fred Ranana ligalo,

FRED RAIANA NGAILO: sworn states:

ADV, VAN GRAAN: The terms of reference reafis as follows:

"To inquire into the riots of Soweto

and other areas during June and there-

after and also to determine the causes."

Do you have any information about the local riots? —- Except
that which I adduced from the press.

M'Lord, I can indicate to you that the law team that
presents the evidence possess clippings from the press (10)
reports. So I do not think it is necessary for llr Ngalo to
refer to these reports that are published in the press. Do
you have any evidence on the riots in Soweto? —- With regard
to Soweto as well, I have nothing experience, but I am relying
on that which I read in the press.

Yes, what I have said, MN'Lord, I think applies to this
remark too. Do you have any evidence on the causes of the
riots? -- My personal opinion as I read the paper, the main
cause which sparked the whole trouble which is still going
on even today in all the country, is the question of (20)
education.

Do you have personal experience of that phenomenon that
you are referring to? -- I would not say experience, I would
say from what I heard in the papers I think the question of
low(?) medium of instruction has contributed a lot.

CHAIRMAN: ‘Were you a teacher at one stage? -~ No, I was a

policeman all the time,
A policeman all the time? -- Yes,

ADV, VAN GRAAN: Do you have any personal knowledge about the

riots? -- I have no personal knowledge about the riots. (30)

I have heard about the riots,

Jhnﬂflr’li-i
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And of the causes? —= And I have heard about the causes.

CHAIRIAN: You have told me that the main cause is education

and that it is the medium of instruction. Is that correct?
—- That is correct.

How what do you still want to say about the medium of
instruction? —- I want to say that had there been no restric-
tion that the Eantu educationists in Bantu schools been allowed
to use the English medium of instruction, there would have been
no trouble up to now,

There would have been no trouble, you say? —-- There (10)
would have been no trouble, I want to emphasise that the
trouble was sparked by the fact that the medium of instruction
in Enplish was refused.

Are you correct? Was it refused or was it only refused
in certain subjects? -- It was refused that English should be
the only instruction to be used as a medium of imparting
knowledge.

Yes, what else do you say about the medium of instruction?
~= I say if the Bantu education authorities agreed to the
educationists that MMfrikaans be used only as a subject (20)
to be taught in the classroom, there would have been no
trouble.

Yes, anything more about that? -- I would expostulate
further and say that after the conference between the Minister
of Bantu Education and the U,B.C. officials and sundry
villagers in Johannesburg, the Minister agreed or conceded to
the fact that any community has the right to choose the
language to be used for the education of its children, bul made
a confession to the fact that this committee should go to the
Bantu Education authorities because they are the people (30)
that .. (inaudible) .. to correct that with him and to my

utter/...
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utter surprise the Regional Director refused flatly and said
education has to be administered by us and you live it as
it is,

How lookK, you are way back now. You say the trouble
started because of the medium of instruction. -- That is
correct.

A1l right, now it has started. What was the next step?
-= The next step was that it just fled and fled,

That? That it just? -- The next thing was that the police
had to go and arrest a child at a school, during (10)
playtime. While the police were trying to effect an arrest,
the children attacked the police and the police ran away and
locked themselves in the principal's office and in the
meantime the children went to the government wvehicle and set
it alight and since that time then there was trouble, there
were demonstrations,

Are you referring to an incident at which school? -~ 1
am referring to an incident in the schools in Sowetlo.

Schools or one school? ——- The question of the arrest at
a place was only one school and from there the children (20)
went around organising themselves into a demonstration. The
number of schools in Soweto which I do not know.

It was Naledi School that you possibly refer to. Yes,
and then? -- And from there it was these riots which went as
far as Cape Town, came to Bloemfontein and came to lNatal and

all over.

ATV, VAN GRAAN: I have no further questions, M'Lord,.

CHATRMAN ; Yes, anything further you wish to say? —-- Yes, 1

would like, as a man of my age, before the Honourable Commission.
to point out some things which they have been there (20)
but just started by that question of the education,

EEE;"{##-
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Yes? —-= Your country is as good as your mother is to you
or to any person or any living thing. I mean that the Black
people do, as the White people of this country, regard this
country as their mother, their lives are like the same,

The love and respect of the laws of a country should be a
pride of all its subjects, particularly in a democratic
country., I mentioned that before that the Black man of this
country, as far as 1 can see, hasn't got the necessary love
and respect of the laws of the country as a White man do.

The reason being that from the onset, when these laws (10)
are made he is not there, not concerned. He only sterts to
know the laws or to hear about the laws of the country wnen
they bring him to trial. Then he knows that I have contravened
the laws, then he goes to jaill. No, %: the lfailure and the
success of the ruling the government of any country depends
entirely on the efficiency of its incumbents.and the officers
thereof, that these discharge their duties with respons.bility
and discipline ... (inaudible).. Now, I have experienced
from this very riot school question. The trouble was started
by the fact that the incumbents d4id not have the (20)
respect of their law, there was no discipline., After the
Minister had said that the Black people had the right to

.. (inaudible) .. education, why had the Regional Directeor to
say we are the last to say above the lMinister? What made them
believe that these incumbents are given so wide powers that
they can do as they like to the detriment of the country?

Not very much with the laws of the country, but it is the
person himself who has got to administer these laws, it is
where the trouble starts and even now it started with an
ordinary servant of the government, the Regional Director. (30)

And I remember the children said we have noted now that we
have/
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have got no government and we have got no parents to help us,
we are the only ones who are suffering under the teachers who
are teaching us in a language we cannot control. We are goling
to see to things. That was in the papers we all read and
indeed I felt something should have been done and nothing was
done until trouble came., Our people - I am trying to bring
the lonourable Commission, things that build up grievances
which must one day come to a break and they will injure us all,
we will all fall in .. (inaudible) .. all of us, not only
White or Black. Power to rule by nature every person (10)
hags a strong will to rule and in this country only the White
man takes that to himself and the Black man must not rule, he
must just be a follower. Those things I think create grievances
amongst the Black people. FPower to own: God has made us all
to envy, made again a strong will to own. This is my jacket;
anybody cannot have it without my permission, but very little
if any, has a Black man in this country a substantial
possession, Here I am not even talking about owning houses
in locations, we cannot own them and then we have got ...
(inaudible) .. & mansion like this only that .. (20)
(intervenes)

llow do you bring this into the riots? -~ I am bringing
this, if I may, to show that we cannot go and attribute all
this that has happened to the question of education alone.
I believe your Commission will attribute this to many other
things which are happening and which must be corrected for
good of the country. And power to decide the franchise(?)
right. That right which .. (intervenes)

Look, I must limit you now to the things that I am
investigating and that is the events, and you tell me (30)
that the events you have read in the newspapers about., Now

then/. ..
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then there is only one thing left to you and that is the cause
of the riots. Now you have given me one which is education,
the medium of instruction. That you have given me, And that
I can see is in direct relation to the riots itself. Now
give me the next point that you say is a cause of the unrest,
the riots. —- Thank you very much, IM'Lord., This also has 1o
do with education. Clause 71, terms of office regulations,
under this clause .. (intervenes)

Vhich regulations are you speaking about? -~ The Bantu
Education Regulations, (10)
Yes., -- Under these terms the office of the regional
director is given very wide powers which he sometimes can use

or uses maliciously to the detriment of the nation and of
the laws that have been made themselves.

Is your point now that the people who have power,
exceeds this power and they are using it wrongly? -- 1t was
mentioned in your Commission that I was once the chairman of
a school board and I was chased out on reason that I was doing
wrong things and that was not correct. Because if that was
the case, I would have been told that I have done that (20)
wrong and the other thing. I was chased oul because I dis-
agreed with a certain inspector who was wanting to play in the
ground or in the powers which are vested in a school board,
which had nothing to do with the said inspector and I refused
that flatly and I showed the law and the efficiency of my
doing the work.

You were a member of a school board., Is that correct? --
I was a member of a school board.

Tou were removed, —- I was removed,

You say you were removed wrongly or rightly? -- I (%0)
was removed wWrongly, maliciously.

How/. ..
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How does that affect or the principle of your removal
affect the question of the riots? -- In .. (inaudible) ..
with now that which happened in Johannesbulg where a repional
‘director refusés to carry a straight forward instruction -

a request from the community which the Minister agrees to and
I am connecting it with the regional director who here was
elected by the people with the franchise which is given the
people by the laws of the country that I was elected into the
board by the people and he just chases me out as he pleasés.

Did he have the right to dismiss you? -- He did (10)
not have the right as far as I am concerned,

I am not talking about whether he did it correctly or not,
but did he have the right to dismiss you or to remove you? —-
He did not have the right.

He did not have the right. -~ He took it upon himself,

Did you take any action when he did this wrong thing to
you? == I did not,

Why not? -- Because I knew it would not help me.

I am sorry? =- I did not do anything except that 1 wrote
to the linister, I gave him a copy and up to now it has (20)
never been answered, I make a mistake to say I did not do
anything further, I did something. I wrote a letter reporting
my complaints, to the Minister of PBantu Education and I sent
him a full copy which is lying in his office and .. (intervenes)

Diﬁ the Minister reply to you? -- le never replied to me.

Nobody replied to you? —-- Nobody replied to me.

How many letters d4id you write? —-= I wrnfe one letter
which I delivered straight to the Minister and I gave the
copy %o the director. Wheri I did not get the reply, I wrote
ﬂﬁﬂther letter which was directed to the Chief Minister (320)
of the Ciskeian Government and a copy thercof I sent to

the/...
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the regional director here and to the lMinister again and never
got a reply.

They did not even say that they had received your letter?
—— They never e;en said they received my letter.

The first one was sent to two people to reply to, the
first one, and three to the second and of those five ...
(intervenes) .. d4id not reply. -- They did not reply. _

Not one of them? ~- Not one of them replied. And another
one I wrote again in connection with the school again. These
things are running around Bantu education. I wrote (10)
another report. This I sent to the Commissioner of Police in
Bloemfontein to the effect that our school is not making the
legal reports according to regulations to the parents for
almustIS years and we do ﬁnt know what is happening about our
finances and in the meantime there have been reports about the
falsification(?) of funds and .. (inaudible).

Did he ever reply to you? -- He replied to me.

What did he reply? -- He said he went to the prosecutor
and the prosecutor is declining to prosecute,

So you did get a reply to that, and they did not (20)
want to prosecute. -- I got a reply to that .. (inaudible)
but I am sure that £;HI had investigated that case, there was
a case to form. Somebody did not want to investigate the case.
That is our .. (inaudible).. You go to a person, a man of the
‘1aw to help you, he does not want to help you ... (inaudible).

Yés, what else have you to say with relation to the
riots? -- I would say it is very necessary thét that we be
siven a platform where we could say our grievances.

Well, you seem to use a lot of platforms. You wrote
letters, you have said things, you were a member of the (30)

school board. == I would ask Your Lordship to give a

plﬂtfarmf...
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platform where I can be listened to as I am listened to now.
llot where 1 write a letter and it disappears there and 1 am
talking about the matters of the people. .

You wrote one. Well, why can't you do anything if you
want to talk about that? liave you ever stood for the Urban
Bantu Council? Can't you make a speech? Can't you go there
and become a member, make a speech there? I am just asking
you, You do not give me particulars of what you want to do.
-- I want to be given a platform where I can say my grievances
and talk to another man as I would not talk to any man. (10)

Who do you want to talk to? Do you want to talk to a
whole gathering or to one person? -- I want to talk to the
one who is responsible for that particular department.

Have you ever tried going to him and asking to speak to
him? Yes, is there anything further you would like to say?
-—(No reply.)

I do not want to cut you short because if you can help me
I shall be very grateful. -- I shall be very pleased 1if you do
not cut me short. Do not cut me short. We can show each other,
show this Commission things that has gotten me down and (20)
those that are not getiing down, ——

This Commission you ecan only show things why things went
wrong. 1t deals only with the riots. —-- We are agreed that
the contributory factors are so many. -- Fear and the words
'fear' and 'hatred' was used here by a European gentleman, I
think he was a teacher. lle was correct, The Black man has
so feared the White man that from that fear hatred has
developed and we can all agree that whoever you fear ultimately
you must hate that person and no country can stand with people
hating'anﬁlfearing each other and ought to appeal to the (30)
country through this Honourable Commission that we should

substantiate/. ..
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substantiate - substitute the words 'hatred' with 'love' and
'fear' with 'respect'. We shall get those two, take those
two, plant them, water them and grow them in this country.
Then no such things as Commissions sitting because our own
children are burning our own country, are burning us.  They
do not only burn buildings, they burn us too, they set us
alight and really we should be ashamed to come to any country
or in front of Mlmighty God if we find our children as though
we have made burning us. We must ask ourselves genuine and
true questions without beating about the truth, (10)

Yes? -- Let us not fear and hate .. (intervenes)

Yes, you have dealt with that point. -- Let us love....
(intervenes)

Go onto-your next point. -- Thank you very much, IM'Lord.
In general all people are good and very good sometimes. You
hear some people say Europeans are bad and some say Bantu
people are bad. There is no such a case. At a  stage I am
bad and at a stage I am good, and all human minds are like
that, there is no forms of saying other people are bad - but
as far as the Black man is concerned, the White man is bad.(20)
It is one of those things that we must come together and plead.
I am saying so because I include the Police Force. When I
joined the Police Force about 40 years back, the Police Force
was a ..(inaudible) .. amongst people. I went out to say there
is nothing as good as a police in a country, but the mistake
is the man who administers the law and I corrected that and
we caﬁ go and correct this issue too provided we are
Christians and willing to do that. DBut remember Geod has made
everyone in image of his own,

Yes,.all right, go on to the next point, because (30)
you are a bit away from riots at the moment., -- The laws

have/...
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have moderated us so that even the biggest man, the powerful
ﬁan can live moderately with the lowest man, that is the good
made by the laws in the country if they are administerecd
properly and fairly. So that each and everyone has to
respect tha; legislation. 7The condition in this country is
such that in every key position is a White person. This alone
is enough to aggravate and to make the Elack man hate Whites,
Wherever you go you get an instruction, the White man tells
you what and what not. [INo man is willing to .. (inaudible)
we can also ... (inaudible) .. those things so that (10)
sometimes you have, instead of .. (inaudible) ... have tﬁeir
own people which will happen tomorrow .. (inaudible).
Malicious epplication of the law is what I call that ...
(inaudible - witness speaks very indistinetly). We have got
another very common word here in our country, segregation.
Segregation and discrimination. .. (inaudible) .. there was
nothing like that. The meaning here is very gnad.ane, but it
is again .. (inaudible) .. and enforced by application of the
law and it is where this ... (inaudible) .. is felt and
resented. llost people feel they are segregated against (20)
and that they are discriminated against and there 1s no such
thing except that it is the law that is made that you muéi not
enter that gate, you must enter that one. Otherwise by nature
we ,are willing to stay by ourselves and the White people are
willing.tn stay by themselves in their group. So is nature.
Even animals there was no need to make the law, but Jjust

ess (inaudible) ... we are segregated against. Laws are made’
apainst us to suppress us, laws are mﬁﬁe for us only not for
the country, but only for the Black pcople. Those are the
things whiph we should, I think, the Commission should (30)
look at very carefully and go to the auvthorities to see that

they/...
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they are corrected immediately for the good of the country,
Starvation, starvation. ©So this one is starved, he must take

-~ turn to Le a lion, turn to be a dog, and go and steal and go
‘and do things that he should not do, but this starvation.

The Black man is starved in this country. That is another thing
that must be corrected. If you will go into town, a Black
man will buy anything expensively, he will pay that R40 here,
he pgets R20 a week.

Is that what you got when you were a policeman? —- ...
(inaudible) .. R20 a week he goes to buy furniture for  (10)
R600, promises to pay R10 per month, where is he going to get
from. He is only trying to obtain that commodity in a
fraudulent manner because after 2, 3, 5 months it 1s taken back
by the busin?ss, it is not his, it is disowned that, And I
believe those are the things. Take the question again of
Prison Department and the arrests, The person arrests a man
in the street for failing to produce a reference book. ke
- goes to jail. When he gets there he meets with terrible
seasoned prisoners and he commits the worst crime right in
the ... (intervenes) (20}

How does all that affect the riots? -- I am showing you
that all the nation that has .. (inaudible) .. turns best out
is to something else, turns to do anything which ... (inaudible)
to do. ... (inaudible) .. where 14 people here were sentenced
to life sentence for having committed brutal murder right in
the cells.

Yes, yes, I know all that, I know all that, but how does
that affect the - -investigation of this Commission? -—- I%
gffects it in that as it is now there is no European going
aﬁﬁut burning or committing these riots except those (30)
Europeans who are instigating the Blacks. They are done by

the/...
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the Blacks, they are used easily because there is fertile
ground for growing communisn and ill-feeling and crime.
Any nation that is starved is a good ground for growing ...
(intervenes)

You have dealt with starving. -- I have explained that
further.

Well, you can take it that I understand it. —- The
.. (inaudible) is anybody that is not White, any unclean body
you are bound to find a life in that body. 50 BNY ssses
(inaudible) .. you are bound to find crime in abundance. (10)
Thank you, I1'Lord.

0 FURTHER QUESTICLS.
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